www.laxtonpc.org.uk

Clerk: Alan Bravey, 3 Ruskin Way, Brough, East Riding of Yorkshire, HU15 1GW

Telephone: 07932 016856 Email: laxtonpc@btinternet.com

15/10/2021

To: All Members of the Council

You are summoned to attend the meeting of Laxton Parish Council that will be held on Wednesday 20 October 2021 at 7:00pm to transact the business set out below. The meeting will take at Victory Hall, Station Road, Laxton, DN14 7TW. The Agenda is as set out below.

Members of the public and press are welcome to attend and may address the Council during the public participation section. It is recommended that all Councillors, public and press should perform a lateral flow test before attending the meeting and wear a face covering. The meeting will be held in accordance with COVID-19 safe working practises.

Yours sincerely

Clerk to the Council

AGENDA

- 1. To receive apologies for absence
- 2. To record declarations of interest by any member of the council in respect of the agenda items below.
- 3. To receive and sign the Minutes of the Parish Council Meeting, held on Wednesday, 22 September, 2021 as a true and correct record
- 4. Public Participation to temporarily suspend the meeting to receive questions from the public.
- 5. To agree to reopen the meeting following suspension
- 6. To receive the action log from the Clerk
- 7. To receive an update from Parish Councillors
- 8. To receive an update from Ward Councillors

www.laxtonpc.org.uk

Clerk: Alan Bravey, 3 Ruskin Way, Brough, East Riding of Yorkshire, HU15 1GW

Telephone: 07932 016856 Email: laxtonpc@btinternet.com

- 9. To discuss the following correspondence:
 - i. ERYC, Festive Lighting Requirements
 - ii. AEB Architecture and Design, Reply to Parish Council's comments on planning application to 6 St Peters Lane
 - iii. Allotment Holder, Notice to quit tenancy
 - iv. ERYC, Confirmation that refurbishment work on Church Close to start on 29/9/21 following Village Walkabout (kerbs, potholes)
 - v. ERYC, Pothole at Saltmarshe to be addressed within 28 days
 - vi. ERNLLCA, Zoom invite to District Meeting 21st October at 7pm
- 10. To receive an update on the 18 October Allotment Committee meeting from Councillor Sweeting.
- 11. To consider the response to the feedback from the COVID recovery survey.
- 12. To resolve to adopt the revised Model Code of Conduct
- 13. To raise any highways, dykes or drainage issues
- 14. To approve the schedule of accounts for payment
- 15. To agree any agenda items for the Parish Councill meeting on 24 November 2021

7.00pm 22 September 2021

PRESENT: Councillors Goulden (Chair), Collins, Newton, Sweeting and Yarrow.

Apologies were received from Councillors Bray and Ward Councillor Bayram.

There were no members of the public present.

Clerk: Alan Bravey

The meeting was held at Laxton Victory Hall.

81/21 **DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS** – Councillor Yarrow declared a pecuniary interest in the planning application for 7 St Peters Lane and left the room for that item.

82/21 **MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING** – **Resolved** – That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on Wednesday 21 July 2021 should be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

83/21 **PUBLIC PARTICIPATION** – There were no members of the public present.

84/21 **ACTION LOG UPDATE** – There had been no feedback from Northern Powergrid regarding Cotness Corner, or the Council's tree officer or the Council's public rights of way team. A piper had been booked for the 2nd June Jubilee celebrations. ERYC had agreed the remove the bus stop signs in due course. The Clerk had ordered a number of hard hats for the cemetery chapel and the potholes on Saltmarshe Road and the damaged bridge on Trandy Lane had been reported.

85/21 **PARISH COUNCILLOR UPDATE** – There were no Parish Councillor updates that were not already on the agenda.

86/21 WARD COUNCILLOR UPDATE – There were no ward councillor updates.

87/21 **CORRESPONDENCE** – Resolved – (a) that the following correspondence should be received by the Council:

- i. ERNLCCA, Allotments Advice
- ii. Humberside Police, Newsletter
- iii. ERYC, Consultation on Public Space Protection Orders in Laxton (currently dog fouling)
- iv. ERYC, Updated COVID resources
- v. ERYC, Planning Approval 2 storey extension to rear (retrospective) 3
 Back Street

- vi. ERYC, Planning Approval Erection of 2 storey extension and various alterations, Saltmarshe Hall
- vii. ERYC, Planning Approval Erection of agricultural building, Metham Hall Farm

88/21 **PLANNING APPLICATIONS - Resolved** – i) that the Parish Council had no objection to the single storey extension to 6 St Peters Lane, but objected to the erection of a detached three bay garage on the grounds that it overcrowded the plot, that the size and scale was not in keeping with the village and due to highways concerns from being on the corner of Church Close ii) the Parish Council had no objections to the erection of a single storey extension to rear of 7 St Peters Lane and iii) the Parish Council had no objection to the erection of a single storey extension and installation of two rooflight's to front at Cotness Cottage, Metham Lane.

89/21 ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE – The recent allotment committee meeting was attended by two tenants, both of whom reported that their plots were unproductive as a result of poor drainage, overworked soil and weeds encroaching from the adjoining plot of land. A lack of a dedicated water supply, difficult parking and access to the gardens, and a lack of seed availability during COVID were also seen as barriers. Both tenants indicated they were considering ending their tenancies as result. The meeting noted ERNLLCA's advice that unoccupied allotment plots could be retired if there was no demand, but that the process for closing down allotments altogether was extremely complex. The meeting concluded that it was ultimately the tenant's responsibility for the maintenance and fertilisation of their plots, noting that the central plots appeared to be productive. It was agreed to consult Howden and Gilberdyke allotment committees on their approach, and then hold a further allotment committee meeting to provide feedback to the tenants. Councillor Collins indicated that one of the tenants was willing to provide water for all holders. It was noted that in any event that further equipment would need to be purchased to maintain the Parish Council's land behind the garages. Councillor Goulden advised that the rotavator had been repaired

Resolved – that a further allotment committee meeting would be held to provide the Parish Council's feedback to the points raised by the tenants.

90/21 **COVID RECOVERY EVENTS UPDATE** – Councillor Goulden had met with the Bricklayers Arms, Village Hall Committee and Saltmarshe Hall, and it had been agreed to ask the community what events they would like to see take place. A survey had been launched suggesting a number of potential options, and residents had also been asked to provide their own ideas. There had only been 10 responses received so far.

Resolved – To review the parish feedback at the next meeting.

91/21 **PHONE BOX COMPETITION** – Six entries had been received for the competition to name and illustrate a use for the Laxton Phone Box. The Chairman of the East Riding of Yorkshire Council, Councillor Wilkinson, had agreed to judge the competition.

Resolved - That the all the prizes would be issued as Amazon Gift Vouchers, and that each entry would receive a £5 voucher.

92/21 HIGHWAYS, DRAINS AND DYKES - There were no issues to raise.

93/21 **ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT** – **Resolved** – a) that it be noted that the follow had been be paid by BACS since the last meeting

- i. Information Commission Annual Fee £435
- ii. Piper Deposit for Queens Jubilee, £100
- iii. Clerk, August Salary £98.64

and b) that that the following accounts be approved for payment:

- iv. Clerk, Salary September £,98.64
- v. HMRC PAYE August and Sept- £130.40

SIGNED:	DATE:

Laxton Parish Council - Action Log

	Action	Status	Lead	Update
1	Check status of the Cotness Footbridge Bridge.	Ongoing	Clerk	23/6 – ERYC provided options to the landowners for consideration14/10 update - Landowners have responded back this week. ERYC now to assess comments and make decision on way forward. ERYC to update when something substantial to report back.
2	Check expected repair time of bridge at Skelton footpath.	Ongoing	Clerk	23/6 - Badger Sett holding up works. 14/10 update - New bridge required, but badger sett underneath the footings and the placement site and so consultation with Natural England required / underway. Due to this, and the size of the bridge required, likely to be into 2022/23 before replacement can be made.
7	Councillor Colins to mow land behind garages	Ongoing	Councillor Collins.	Likely that this will be done by one of the allotment holders.
8	Councillor Goulden to arrange for the rotavator to be serviced.	Complete		Rotavator in process of being stripped down and repaired.
9	Allotment committee would be re-formed to lead the day-to-day management of the gardens.	Ongoing	Clerk	Allotment committee meeting held, with two tenants present, who indicated that the condition of soil, difficulty in keeping weeds from adjoining field, and poor drainage, leading them to consider vacating plots. Further meeting to be held on 18 Oct.

11	Clerk would enquire about whether the community tree planting fund could be used to replace the trees removed from Back Street / St Peter's Lane.		Clerk	ERYC consulted and awaiting feedback. Updated requested Sept and Oct, and additioanl request made on the "over grown" tree.
12	The Clerk had contacted Northern Powergrid for an update on their proposals to move the pole at Cotness Corner.		l(lerk	NPG consulted and awaiting feedback. Follow ups Sept and Oct.
13	Clerk to purchase a Tommy for display at the Church and one to display at either the Village Hall or the Beacon.		Clerk	Order placed. Permissions given by Church and Village Hall, AB to arrange installation through Neil Wenn.
15	Consult Pub / Village Hall on the Get Ready East Yorkshire Grant	Ongoing	Councillor Goulden	Meeting held, and survey issued to residents asking what events they would like to see.
16	Queens Platinum Jubilee Planning	Ongoing	Parish Council	Piper booked.
17	Remove Village Bus Stops	Ongoing	Clerk	ERYC confirmed signes to be removed in due course.
18	Purchase hard hats for the Cemetry Chapel	Ongoing	Clerk	Purchased
19	Laxton Phone Box Colouring Competition	Complete	Clerk	Competition closed, gift cards posted to entrants.

Complete Ongoing

Laxton Parish Council Correspondence Record

15th September to 15th October

The Clerk will circulate correspondence when considered appropriate. If Councillors would like to see a copy of correspondence that has not be circulated, please notify the Clerk on laxtonpc@btinternet.com on 07932 016856.

Date Received	Attached?	From	Purpose of Correspondence	
20/09/2021	N	ERYC	Festive Lighting Requirements	
23/9/2021	N	AEB Architecture and Design	Reply to Parish Council's comments on planning application to 6 St Peters Lane	
24/9/2021	N	Allotment Holder	Notice to quit tenancy	
29/9/2021	N	ERYC	Confirmation that refurbishment work on Church Close to start on 29/9/21 following Village Walkabout (kerbs, potholes)	
30/9/2021	N	ERYC	Pothole at Saltmarshe to be addressed within 28 days	
6/10/2021	N	ERNLLCA	Zoom invite to District Meeting – 21st October at 7pm	

The Seven Principles of Public Life

Laxton Parish Council is required to adopt a code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted members of the authority when they are acting in that capacity. The Code must be consistent with the 'Nolan' principles -

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.

Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

These principles do not form part of the Code itself. Complaints that a Member has breached the provisions of the Code must be based on a breach of the provisions set out below under Standards of Councillor Conduct.

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT

Definitions

In this Code of Conduct:-

Councillor means a member or co-opted member of a local authority; "co-opted member" is defined in the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as "a person who is not a member of the authority but who

- (a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
- (b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the authority;

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that committee or sub-committee".

Family means Spouse, Civil partner, any person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner, parent, grandparent, child, grandchild or sibling.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect you, the public, fellow councillors, authority officers and the reputation of local government. It sets out your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of councillor and local government.

Application of the Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor which may include when:

- you misuse your position as a councillor
- Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

- at face-to-face meetings
- at online or telephone meetings
- in written communication
- in verbal communication
- in non-verbal communication
- in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and comments.

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring Officer.

Standards of councillor conduct

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may be made against you, which may result in action being taken.

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be followed.

1. You must treat others with respect

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and offensive behaviour lowers the public's expectations and confidence in councillors.

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any conversation or interaction in person or online. Intimidatory or threatening behaviour which may amount to a criminal offence can be reported to the Police. You may also report any such behaviour to the relevant social media provider. This also applies to fellow councillors, where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority's councillor officer protocol.

2. You must not:

- a. Bully any person.
- b. Harass any person.
- c. Do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality enactments.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others.

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable person.

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality across public services.

3. You must not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the authority.

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral. They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity.

4. You must not

a. Disclose information:

- i. given to you in confidence by anyone
- ii. acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature,
- iii. which consists of the personal data of another person, unless
 - 1. You have received the consent of a person authorised to give it:
 - 2. You are required by law to do so;
 - the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or
 - 4. the disclosure is:
 - a. reasonable and in the public interest; and
 - b. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
 - c. You have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its release.
- b. Improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of your role as a councillor for the advancement of you, your close associates, members of your family, your employer or your business interests.
- c. Prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by law.

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions, documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations.

5. You must not conduct yourself in a manner that could reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute.

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public's confidence in your or your local authority's ability to discharge your/its functions. For example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute.

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct.

6. You must not use, or attempt to use, your position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of yourself or anyone else.

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others. However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or others' private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

- 7. You must not misuse council resources.
- 8. When using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use by others you must:
 - a. act in accordance with the authority's requirements
 - b. ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes (including party political purposes)

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in carrying out your duties as a councillor.

Examples include:

- office support
- stationery
- equipment such as phones, and computers
- transport
- access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority's own policies regarding their use.

9. You must -

- a. undertake Code of Conduct training provided by your principal authority
- b. co-operate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination.
- c. comply with any sanction imposed on you following a finding that you have breached the Code of Conduct.

10. You must not -

- a. intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.
- b. make any trivial or malicious complaint against any other Member alleging a breach of any of the provisions of this Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local authority's processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring Officer.

- 11. You must within 28 days of receipt, register offers of gifts or hospitality with a value of £25 or more which have been offered to you in your capacity as a Member of the authority from any person or body other than the authority.
- 12. You must not accept gifts and hospitality regardless of value where it may lead any reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant facts to believe that you might be influenced by the gift or hospitality given.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the authority, you should exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your Monitoring Officer for guidance.

Registration of Interests

13. You must before the end of 28 days beginning on the day on which you become a Member of the authority or within 28 days of any change in an interest or becoming aware of any new interest notify the Monitoring Officer of:

- a. The following Pecuniary Interests of yourself, your spouse or civil partner, any person with whom you are living as husband or wife or any person with whom you are living as if they were a civil partner:
 - i. Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
 - ii. Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
 - iii. Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and (b) which has not been fully discharged.
 - iv. Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council. 'Land' excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive income.
 - v. Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer
 - vi. Any tenancy where (to the councillor's knowledge) (a) the landlord is the council; and (b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners is a partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of.
 - vii. Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where (a) that body (to the councillor's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the council; and (b) either (i)) the total nominal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

^{* &#}x27;director' includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society.

^{* &#}x27;securities' means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial

Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society.

- b. The following Non-Pecuniary interests of yourself:
 - i. Bodies to which you are appointed or nominated by the authority other than bodies in which the authority has an interest (i.e. outside body appointments).
 - ii. Bodies exercising functions of a public nature of which you are a Member (including regional and local enterprise partnerships, other councils, public health bodies, school governing bodies).
 - iii. Bodies directed to charitable purposes of which you are a Member (including the Lions, the Masons, a Parochial Church Council; not just bodies registered with the Charity Commission).
 - iv. Bodies whose principal purposes include influence of public opinion of policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a Member.
 - v. Any voluntary work undertaken by you.
 - vi. Any role as a trustee.
- 14. You need only notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests of which you are aware pursuant to paragraph 13 above.
- 15. Where you become a Member of the authority as a result of a re-election or re-appointment you only need to disclose interests not already entered on the register.

Sensitive Interests

16. Where the nature of the interest is such that you consider that the disclosure of the interest could lead to you or a person connected with you being subject to violence or intimidation, (and the Monitoring Officer agrees) details of the interests will not be included in any published version of the register of interests save that the register will state you have an interest the details of which are withheld under section 32(2) of the Localism Act 2011.

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and maintain a register of interests of members of the authority. You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

You should note that failure to register or disclose a pecuniary interest as set out at paragraph 13 above is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

Action on Interests

Pecuniary Interests

17. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Pecuniary Interests as set out at paragraph 13 above, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room (or go into the lobby of a virtual meeting) unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a pecuniary interest.

Non-Pecuniary Interests

- 18. You have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of the authority where either
 - a. it is likely to affect any of the bodies listed in paragraph 13 (b) above;
 - b. it is likely to affect any person or body from whom you have within the last six years and in your capacity as a Member accepted an offer of gifts or hospitality with a value of £25.00 or more, or
 - c. the decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your wellbeing, or financial position, or the wellbeing or financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than the majority of other Council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the Ward affected by the decision.

19. A relevant person is:-

- a. A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or
- b. A person or body who employs or has appointed such persons any firm of which they are a partner or any company of which they are Directors.
- 20. Where you have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of the authority and you attend a meeting of the authority at which that business is considered you must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration or when the interest becomes apparent.
- 21. Paragraph 20 only applies where you are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the interest.
- 22. Where you have an interest but by virtue of paragraph 16 it is not registered in the authority's register of interests you must indicate you have a non-pecuniary interest but need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting.
- 23. Subject to sub-paragraph (a) below where you have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of your authority you also have a prejudicial interest in that business

where the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest

- a. You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to the functions of your authority in respect of
 - i. an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;
 - ii. any ceremonial honour given to members; and
 - iii. setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992.
- 24. Where a matter arises at a meeting in which you have a prejudicial interest, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room (or go into the lobby of a virtual meeting). Where you have an interest but by virtue of paragraph 16 it is not registered in the authority's register of interests you must indicate you have a prejudicial interest but need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting.

Laxton Parish Council

Accounts for Payment

October 2021

Payments made to be noted

Payee	Details	Total	VAT
East Riding of Yorkshire Council	Hornets Nest Removal	£50	
Clerk	Competition Prizes	£,65	

Payments to be Authorised

_Payee	Details	Total	VAT
Alan Bravey	October Salary	TBC - 98.64	
HMRC	PAYE – October	TBC - 130.4	